
AGENDA FOR

LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL

Contact:: Leigh Webb
Direct Line: 0161 253 5399
E-mail: l.m.webb@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Licensing and Safety Panel

Councillors : P Adams, N Bayley, I Bevan, J Grimshaw, 
R Hodkinson, D Jones (Chair), G Keeley, J Kelly, 
O Kersh, A McKay, Sarah Southworth, J Walker and 
S Wright

Dear Member/Colleague

Licensing and Safety Panel

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel 
which will be held as follows:-

Date: Thursday, 1 September 2016

Place: Meeting Rooms A & B - Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

Notes:



AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Licensing and Safety Panel are asked to consider whether 
they have an interest in any of the matters on the agenda, and if so, to 
formally declare that interest.  

3  MINUTES  (Pages 1 - 6)

Minutes of the last meeting, held on 14 July, are attached. 

4  PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  

Questions are invited from members of the public present at the meeting 
on any matters for which this Panel is responsible.

Approximately 30 minutes will be set aside for Public Question Time if 
required.

5  OPERATIONAL REPORT  (Pages 7 - 8)

6  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business, which by reason of special circumstances, the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.

7  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To consider passing the appropriate resolution under section 100 (A)(4) of 
the Local Government Act 1972 that the press and public be excluded 
from the meeting during consideration of the following item of business 
since it involves the likely disclosure of the exempt information stated.

8  APPLICATIONS FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER 
LICENCES  (Pages 9 - 16)



Minutes of: LICENSING AND SAFETY PANEL

Date of Meeting: 14 July 2016

Present: Councillor D Jones (in the Chair), 
Councillors: P Adams, N Bayley, I Bevan , J 
Grimshaw, R Hodkinson, G Keeley, J Kelly, 
A Mckay , Sarah Southworth and  J Walker  

     
Apologies for absence: Councillors O Kersh 

Public Attendance: There were no members of the public in 
attendance

___________________________________________________________________

LSP.136 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest raised in relation to any items on 
the agenda.

LSP.137 MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the Licensing and Safety Panel meeting held on 9 
June 2016, be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

 
LSP.138 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no members of the public present to ask questions under 
this item.

LSP.139 OPERATIONAL REPORT

The Assistant Director (Localities) submitted a report advising Members 
on operational issues within the Licensing Service.

The report set out updates in respect of the following issues:

 Driver Assessments
 Home Study Pack Review – Expected Conduct of a Licensed 

Driver.
 Premises Licence Reviews
 Parklife Event

During discussion of this item, Members of the Panel placed on record 
their appreciation for the hard work of the Licensing Department in 
relation to the Parklife event, held in Heaton Park on 11th and 12th June 
2016.

It was agreed:

That the report be noted.
 

83

Document Pack Page 1 Agenda Item 3



Licensing and Safety Panel, 14 July 2016

LSP.140 URGENT BUSINESS

There was no urgent business reported.
 

LSP.141 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

Delegated decision:

That in accordance with Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following items of business since it involved the 
likely disclosure of information relating to individuals who hold Licences 
granted by the Authority or Applicants for Licences provided by the 
Authority.

    LSP.142 APPLICATIONS FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVERS’ LICENCES

(E)
The Licensing Manager presented a report submitted by the Assistant 
Director (Localities) regarding applications for Public/Private Hire 
Vehicles Drivers’ Licences.

The Applicants were invited to attend the meeting for separate hearings
and the Chair outlined the procedure to be followed.  The Applicants 
were invited to address the Panel separately on their applications and 
any matters referred to in the Officer’s report.  

1. Applicant 16/2016 attended the meeting and was accompanied by his 
legal representative.  The report was read by the Licensing Unit Manager 
and was accepted by the Applicant and his legal representative. Through 
the Applicant’s representative, it was explained that the Applicant had 
not sought to deceive the Licensing Department by not declaring the 
offences listed in the report relating to the removal of and failure to 
disclose the disposal of personal as an undischarged bankrupt. On 
examination of the Applicants Private Hire Licence application form it 
was noted that the Applicant had made reference to the fact he had 
been made the subject of a bankruptcy order at Bolton County Court, 
but there was no reference to the subsequent convictions for offences 
connected to that bankruptcy.

In relation to the offences the Applicant’s representative explained that 
he had been a young man at the time, pleaded guilty immediately and 
expressed regret over the incidents. He had, it was explained, felt 
pressurised to comply with the requests of an older family member. In 
addition, the Applicant’s representative explained that the Applicant 
would, if given the opportunity, have pleaded guilty much earlier. This 
would have resulted in a far earlier date of conviction as the actual 
offences occurred almost 5 years ago and the conviction occurred in 
January 2014.     

     Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the written report and the oral 
representations made by the Applicant and the Applicant’s Legal 

84

Document Pack Page 2



    Licensing and Safety Panel, 14 July 2016

representative and taking into account the Council’s Conviction Policy 
and Guidelines, in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 the Panel determined that Applicant 16/2016 was a 
fit and proper person and resolved to grant the application for a 
Private Hire Driver’s Licence.  

The Panel noted that;
 the offences although serious, had been committed almost 5 

years ago when the Applicant was much younger
 the offences had been the result of pressure imposed on the 

Applicant from an older family member
 the Applicant had pleaded guilty at the earliest opportunity 
 the Applicant expressed regret over the incident
 the Applicant had disclosed his bankruptcy.

2. Applicant 20/2016 attended the meeting and was accompanied by his 
wife.  The report was read by the Licensing Unit Manager and was 
accepted by the Applicant. Through his wife, the Applicant stated that 
the offence referred to related to using a vehicle with no insurance, had 
been the result of him unknowingly being uninsured,  due to his 
insurance company not notifying him that the policy had been cancelled, 
as a result of a failed direct debit payment due to lack of funds. The 
Applicant’s wife explained that she manages the family finances and had 
not noticed the lack of funds in their joint account. The Applicant 
accepted that the lack of insurance had only been found out after he had 
a road traffic accident, but also stated that he has a job offer with a local 
private hire operator, a mistake had been made and he regretted it. 

Delegated Decision:

The Panel carefully considered the written report, the oral 
representations made by the Licence Holder and his wife and taking into 
account the Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines in accordance 
with the Local government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 the 
Panel determined the Applicant not to be a fit and proper person and 
therefore resolved that the application for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence 
by Applicant 20/2016 be refused.

The Panel noted the circumstances of the offence, but found that;
 the offence was of a serious nature 
 there had been short amount of time that had elapsed since the 

commission of the offence and conviction
 the Applicant had only found out he was uninsured after he had a 

road traffic accident
 it was for the Applicant not his wife to ensure that his insurance 

was valid and that premiums were paid.

The Applicant was informed of their right of appeal to the Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days.

3. Applicant 21/2016 attended the meeting and was unaccompanied.  The 
Licensing Unit Manager presented the report, which was accepted by the 
Applicant.

85

Document Pack Page 3



Licensing and Safety Panel, 14 July 2016

The Applicant then addressed the Panel and explained that in relation to 
the offence of using a vehicle with no insurance, he had cancelled his 
policy whilst on holiday. On his return he had telephoned to reinstate the 
policy, but was subsequently stopped by the police and told he was 
uninsured. The Applicant acknowledged that following the telephone 
conversation with the insurance company he had not sought to check for 
a confirmation email relating to the re-instatement of the policy. He 
stated that this was a mistake and he regretted it and would never drive 
without insurance knowingly or make the same mistake again.

Delegated Decision:

The Panel carefully considered the written report and the oral 
representations made by the Applicant and taking into account the 
Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines, in accordance with the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976, the Panel determined 
that Applicant 21/2016 was a fit and proper person and resolved to 
grant the application for a Private Hire Driver’s Licence for 12 
months.

The Panel found that:
 the offence was of a serious nature 
 the date of conviction was over 3 years prior to the date of 

application
 the Applicant showed remorse for his mistake.

4. Applicant 22/2016 attended the meeting and was accompanied by a 
friend, the operator of a local taxi company. The Licensing Unit Manager 
read the report which was accepted by the Applicant.

The Applicant addressed the Panel and explained that although the 
incident that had resulted in a conviction for battery against his wife had 
occurred, he had not hit his wife, but had only pushed her away and no 
injuries were suffered.  He explained that his wife had not wished to 
press charges, but had called the police, who had decided to pursue to 
matter to court. The Applicant stated that he had a young child and he 
and his wife, although not yet living back together, were hoping to do so 
in the near future and he now needed to be able to support his family 
financially.

The Applicants friend advised the Panel that the Applicant had worked 
for his company in the past without any complaints and he would offer 
him a job if his application was successful.

Delegated decision:

The Panel carefully considered the written report, the oral 
representations made by the Licence Holder and his friend and taking 
into account the Council’s Conviction Policy and Guidelines, in 
accordance with the Local government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1976 the Panel determined the Applicant not to be a fit and proper 
person and therefore resolved that the application for a Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence by Applicant 22/2016 be refused.

86

Document Pack Page 4



                  Licensing and Safety Panel, 14 July 2016

 The Panel found that;
 the offence was of a very serious nature
 the offence had been committed just over 2 years ago
 the conviction is less than 3 years prior to the date of the 

application
 the sentence for the offence was an 18 month conditional 

discharge and this period had only recently expired
 the Applicant admitted assaulting his wife and had pleaded guilty
 the Applicant showed no remorse or recognition of the 

seriousness of the offence. 

The Applicant was reminded of their right of appeal to the   Magistrates’ 
Court within 21 days.

COUNCILLOR D JONES
CHAIR
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00 pm and finished at 8.25 pm)

87

Document Pack Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION OF: LICENSING & SAFETY PANEL

DATE: 1st SEPTEMBER 2016

SUBJECT: OPERATIONAL REPORT  

REPORT FROM: ASSISTANT DIRECTOR (LOCALITIES)

CONTACT OFFICER: M BRIDGE

TYPE OF DECISION:
 
N/A – Report for information only

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: This paper is in the public domain

SUMMARY: A report to advise members on operational issues within 
the licensing service.

IMPLICATIONS:

Wards Affected: N/A

Scrutiny Interest: Internal Scrutiny Panel

1.0 BACKGROUND 

1.1 The report advises Members on operational issues within the licensing service.

2.0 DRIVER ASSESSMENTS

2.1 Further to the last meeting of the Licensing and Safety Panel. The licensing 
service can confirm that the assessments are continuing to be undertaken by 
the adult learning team. From the 8th July 2016 until the 12th August 2016 
there has been 28 assessments carried out. Of the 30 assessments that were 
booked, 22 passed, 6 failed and 2 failed to attend.   

2.0 TAXI LICENCE APPEAL

2.1 Members may recall that the licensing service received a complaint on 3rd March 
2016 from a member of the public in relation to a private hire driver’s 
inappropriate conduct which resulted in the complainant reporting the matter to 
Greater Manchester Police.

1

Agenda
Item

REPORT FOR DECISION

Document Pack Page 7 Agenda Item 5



As a result of the above complaint, the Head of Service of Trading Standards 
and Licensing spoke to the Chairman of the Licensing and Safety Panel and it 
was decided that his private hire driver’s licence should be revoked with 
immediate effect. This was reported in the operational report on the 11th April 
2016. 

2.2 The driver appealed the decision of the Panel to the Magistrates Court. The 
appeal was heard on the 22 July 2016. The witness and the appellant both gave 
live evidence and were cross examined. The appeal was dismissed. The Council 
applied for costs in the sum of £1250, but the Magistrates awarded £700. 

Contact Details:
M Bridge
Licensing Unit Manager
3 Knowsley Place
Duke Street
Bury
BL9 0EJ
Tel: 0161 253 5209   Email: m.bridge@bury.gov.uk

2

Document Pack Page 8



Document is Restricted

Document Pack Page 9 Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	5 OPERATIONAL REPORT
	8 APPLICATIONS FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER LICENCES

